seminars on the interrelationship between law, ethics, and business practices has been made possible through a grant to the Law School from the New World Foundation. Annual publication of The Journal of Law and Economics, under the editorship of Professor Aaron Director, was begun in the autumn of 1958.

XIV. The Supreme Court Review

Annual publication of The Supreme Court Review, dedicated exclusively to responsible professional criticism of the work of the United States Supreme Court, will commence in 1960. The Supreme Court Review is under the editorship of Professor Philip B. Kurland.

XV. Student Scholarships and Loans

The Law School awards a limited number of full-tuition National Honor Scholarships to outstanding students designated by selected colleges. In addition, a number of scholarships are available each year for law students of outstanding ability who need financial assistance. Some of these scholarships are for full tuition, some for half-tuition, and some for amounts in excess of the tuition charge. In the case of veterans, scholarship awards may be made as cash grants to supplement government living allowances. A substantial proportion of Law School scholarship aid is reserved for entering students.

The Henry C. Murphy Scholarship Endowment provides aid for worthy boys to secure an education, preference to be shown to those who plan to adopt journalism as their profession.

The LaVerne Noyes Foundation Scholarships (for veterans of World War I and their descendants) are awarded on the basis of service in the armed forces of the United States in World War I.

In addition to the general University Scholarships, the Law School has available the following:

The James Nelson Raymond Scholarship, established in 1930 from a fund given by Anna Louise Raymond in memory of her husband, James Nelson Raymond.

Two Francis Kosmerl Fellowships, each in the amount of $1,000, were established in 1948 by a bequest under the will of Francis Kosmerl, J.D. 1918.

The Class of 1915 Scholarship, a full-tuition scholarship endowed by the Class of 1915, is awarded annually, upon vote of the Law Faculty, to an outstanding student in the Junior Class of the Law School.

The Edwin B. Mayer Scholarship provides tuition aid to a student in the Law School.

The Leo F. Wormser Scholarships were established in 1935 by friends of Leo F. Wormser, J.D. 1909, for many years an eminent member of the Chicago bar, as a memorial to him. In 1940 a gift to this fund was made by Mrs. Leo F. Wormser in memory of Mr. Wormser's mother, Mrs. Frida Wormser; and from time to time additional gifts have also been made to this scholarship fund by the family and friends of Leo F. Wormser. In 1956 the Leo F. Wormser Memorial Fund was augmented by a bequest from the estate of Mrs. Leo F. Wormser.

The James B. Blake Scholarship Fund was established in 1951 as a memorial to James B. Blake, J.D. 1907, by his friends.

The Mary Beecher Scholarship is awarded to an outstanding graduate of a women's college in the entering class of the Law School.

The Phi Sigma Delta Scholarship, established by the members of Phi Sigma Delta fraternity, will provide a full-tuition scholarship for an outstanding law student during the academic year 1960-61.
Chicago Title and Trust Company Foundation Scholarships, awarded to outstanding students, have been made possible through gifts to the Law School by the Chicago Title and Trust Company Foundation.

The Arnold I. Shure Scholarship, to be awarded by the Law Faculty to a deserving law student for the academic year 1960-61, was made possible through a gift to the Law School by Frieda Shure in honor of Arnold I. Shure, a graduate of the Law School in 1929.

The Floyd Russell Mechem Law Scholarships, limited to not more than four, to be awarded annually to an entering law student and renewable for the second- and third-year of Law School work, were established in 1959, to be supported by annual law alumni and other gifts, as a memorial to Professor Floyd R. Mechem, for many years a member of the Law Faculty. Each of the Floyd Russell Mechem Law Scholarships provides a stipend of $2,000.

The Class of 1959 Scholarship was established in 1959 through contributions of that class to support the annual award of a scholarship.

Application for scholarships should be made upon a form obtained from the office of the Dean of Students of the Law School. An exception to this procedure is made in the case of the award of a National Honor Scholarship. This award is granted upon the recommendation of a participating college, and application for it should be made to that college.

In addition to scholarship aid, the Law School has available several specially endowed loan funds, as well as general University loan funds.

The special loan funds available exclusively or preferentially to students of the Law School include:

*The Harry A. Bigelow Loan Fund* was established in 1929 by the Law Class of 1929 in honor of the late Dean Bigelow.

*The Law School Student Loan Fund* is available to students in the Law School.

*The Bernhardt Frank Loan Fund* was established in 1952 by Louis H. Silver, J.D. 1928, in honor of his brother-in-law, who was for many years a member of the Chicago Bar and an outstanding appellate lawyer.

*The Ernst Freund Loan Fund* was established in 1922 by the late Professor Ernst Freund and since his death has been augmented by other contributions.

*The Raphael and Rose Golde Loan Fund* was established in 1955 by provision of the will of the late Joseph A. Golde, J.D. 1915, in memory of his parents.

*The James Parker Hall Loan Fund* was established by the alumni of the Law School in memory of the late Dean Hall.

*The Floyd R. Mechem Loan Fund for Law Students* was established in 1921 by the late Professor Floyd R. Mechem.

*The Harvey Puchowitz Loan Fund* was established in 1955 by friends of Harvey Puchowitz in his memory.

*The Ernst W. Puttkammer Loan Fund* was established in 1956 by students in the Class of 1958.

*The Anna Louise Raymond Loan Fund* was established in 1932 for the benefit of students in the Law School, preference to be given to women.

*The Julius Rosenthal Fund* was established in 1903 in memory of Julius Rosenthal by the late Judge Julian W. Mack, formerly a professor in the School.

*The Frederick and Edith Shaffer Sass Loan Fund* was established by Frederick Sass, Jr., Ph.B. 1930, J.D. 1932, and Louis Sass, S.B. 1932, in memory of their parents. Preference is given to students in the Law School.
The Ben and May Shapiro Loan Fund, established by Robert B. Shapiro, J.D. 1935, in memory of his parents, is available to students, preferably in the Law School, who are dependent in whole or in part upon their own efforts to secure an education.

The Clark B. Whittier Law Loan Fund was established by Professor Clark B. Whittier, a former member of the Law Faculty.

An application form for a loan may be obtained from the Office of the Dean of Students of the Law School.

XVI. Conferences, Meetings, and Lectures

The Law School recognizes its responsibility as a law center to contribute to the development of law through research and co-operation with the profession. It recognizes also the importance of such activities as broadening influences in the education of law students. Special student seminars with members of the Bench and Bar and public conferences on major problems of the law are an integral part of the program of the School.

During the Autumn Quarter, 1959, the Dedicatory Address was given on the evening of October 5 by the Vice-President of the United States, The Honorable Richard M. Nixon. On October 6, Lloyd K. Garrison, Esq., of the New York Bar gave the annual address to entering students on “The Practice of Law.” On October 8 a conference was held on “The Public Servant.” The speakers included William E. Stevenson, Esq., President of Oberlin College; John M. Gaus, Professor of Government, Harvard University; Sir Percival Waterfield, K.B.E., First Civil Service Commissioner of the United Kingdom, 1939–51; Oscar Schachter, Esq., Director of the Legal Division, the United Nations; Harrison Tweed, Esq., President of the American Law Institute and Acting President of Sarah Lawrence College; Brigadier General Charles L. Decker, Assistant Judge Advocate General of the Army; and The Honorable Stanley Reed, retired Justice of the Supreme Court of the United States. On November 18 a conference was held on “Power and Responsibility.” Speakers included Robert M. Hutchins, Esq., President, Fund for the Republic; Armen A. Alchian, Professor of Economics, University of California at Los Angeles; Peter H. Odegard, Professor of Political Science, University of California, Berkeley; James R. Wiggins, Executive Editor, Washington Post and Times-Herald, and President, American Society of Newspaper Editors; Wilber G. Katz, James Parker Hall Professor of Law, The University of Chicago, and Paul R. Hays, Nash Professor of Law, School of Law, Columbia University.

During the Winter Quarter, 1960, a conference was held on “Criminal Justice.” Speakers included Frank J. Remington, Professor of Law, University of Wisconsin; Herman Goldstein, Staff Member, Public Administration Service; The Honorable Charles D. Breitel, Justice of the New York Supreme Court, Appellate Division, First Department; Lloyd E. Ohlin, Professor of Sociology, New York School of Social Work, Columbia University; Bruno Bettelheim, Principal, Sonia Shankman Orthogenic School; and The Honorable Sir Patrick Devlin, Lord Justice of the Court of Appeal. On February 8, 1960, a public lecture was given by Professor J. N. D. Anderson, Director of the Institute of Advanced Legal Studies at the University of London.

In the Spring Quarter a public lecture was given by Professor H. R. Hahlo, Dean of the Faculty of Law of the Witwatersrand University in Johannesburg, Union of South Africa. From April 29 through May 1 the final dedicatory celebration, culminating in a special convocation, was held. On the morning of April 29 the Illinois Supreme Court met in official session in the Weymouth Kirkland Courtroom. On the afternoon of